65 Members Present

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

Friday, 4th August, 1939.

The Council met at 10.30 a.m. pursuant
to adjournment, His Exccllency the Act-
ing Governor, Sit Jomx WabnDINGTON,
I.C.M.G.,, O.B.E., President, in the Chair.

PRESENT.

The Hon. the Colonial
Mr. G. D. Owen, C.M.G.

Secretary,

The Hon. J. S. Dash, Director of Agri-
culture.

The Hon. E. A. Luckhoo, O.B.E., (East-
ern Berbice).

The Hon. E. G. Woolford.,, K.C, (New
Amsterdam).

The Hon. M. B. G. Austin, O0.B.E,
(Nominated Unoflicial Member).

The Hon. W. A. D’Andrade,
troller of Customs.

The Hon.
Demerara).

The Hon. E. M. Walcott (Nominated
Unofficial Member).

The Hon. G. O. Case, Director of Pub-
lic Works and Sea Defences.

The Hon. L. G. Crease,
Education.

The Hon. B. R. Wood, Conservator of
Forests.

Comp-

J. 1. De Aguiar (Central

Director of

The Hon. W. A. Macnie, Commissioner
of Labour and Local Government {Acting).

The Hon. Percy C. 0.B.K.,
(Georgetown Central).

The Hon. J. Eleazar (Berbice River).

Wight,

The Hon. Peer Bacchus, (\Western
Berbice).
The Hon. H. C. Humphrys, K.C.

(Eastern Demerara).

The Hon. J. W. Jackson (Nowinated
Unofficial Member).

The Hon. T. Lee (Essequebo River).
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The Hon. C. V. Wight (Western Esse-
quebo).

The Hon. G. H. Smellie (Nominated
Unoflicial Member).

The Hon. F. H. Martin-Sperry (Nomi-
nated Unoflicial Member).

OATH OF ALLEGIANCE.

The President administered the Oath of
Allegiance to the Attorney-Geneval (Mr.
LK. O. Pretheroe, M.C.) and to Mr. S. L.
Gomes (Assistant Attorney-General) who
then took their seats.

MINUTES.
The minutes of the meeting of the

Council held on the 3rd August, 1939, as
printed and circulated, were confirmed.

PETITION.

Mr. LEE laid on the table a petition
from W. Harlequin and other bakery
proprietors of the Colony praying that
legislation should not be introduced to
protect locally-made margarine,

T0 Tne NEW ATTORNEY-

GENERAL.

Mr. BLEAZAR: With your permis-
sion, sir, before we proceed with the Order
of the Day I am asking you to be good
enough to allow the hon. member for New
Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford) to address a
few words of welcome to the new Attorney-
General. I am really wmwaking a task for
him because I have not consulted him
before. I think the legal members of the
Council look upon the hon. member as our
senior, and I think Your Exceliency will
permit us to address a few words of wel-
come to the new Attorney-General.

‘WELCOME

Toe PRESIDENT: Certainly. Does
the hon. member wish to say unything
more ?

Mr. ELEAZATR : I do wish to say some-
thing, but 1 wish to give preference to my
senjor, but as the hon. member, who is my
senior in this Council and at the Bar, is
not prepared to do sol am going to take
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seniority in age and ask your permission
to address a few words of welcome to
the new Attorney-General. Sir, British
Guiana has always been proud to welcome
a newcomer and to offer every co-operation
that it is possible for one to give him in
whatever office he may be called upon to
fill. Before doing so, sir, I think you will
permit me to thank the late acting
Attorney-General for the services which
he has so ably rendered. We have got on
very smoothly, and not because he is one
of our own but because of the kindness
with which he discharged the duties of his
office. He is always ready and willing to
co-operate with members of the Council
even when the matter vou take to him
does not come strictly within the duties of
his office.  We thank him for the mauner
in which he has discharged his duties and
I wish to record our appreciation of his
services.

Having done that I wish to offer a
hearty welcome to the new Attorney-
General and assure him of the co-operation
of this Council and the loyalty of the
community to His Majesty’s Attorney-
General. T wish to assure him that his
prececessors have found us loyal to the
core, and rather than regretting their stay
here they were all very sorry when the
time came to depart. DBritish Guiana’s
hospitality knows no bounds. We accept
all who come to our shores not only as
our neighbours but as our brothers. T
do not know whether the hon. Attorney-
General is among the benedicts, and I do
not know if I can extend a welcome to
anybody other than himself at the moment.
I wish to assure him that the people of
British Guiana generally are proud to wel-
come newcomers, and they can be as loyal
to individuals as they are to His Majesty
the King in person. We can wish the
new Attorney-General no more than
happiness and good health while he is
among us, and assure him of our hearty
co-operation.

Turg ATTORNEY-GENERAL: Sir, I
am grateful for the opportunity to express
my gratitude to the hon. member for the
very warm welcome he has just extended
to me on my arrival in this Colony. As
that arrival took place only a few hours
ago I think, in the circumstances, all T
.can say is that I hope at a future date the
bhon. member will have no cause to recon-

4 AvgusT, 1939.

Questions and Replies 9638

sider the warm words addressed to me this
morning. I think that is all T need say.
(laughter).

Mr. GOMES : I would like to thanlk the
hon. member for Berbice River for his
kind remarks.

ORDER OF THE DAY.

Crivit, SERVICE APPOINTMENTS.

Mr. LEE asked the following eques-
tions : —

1. Will Government in the future adopt the
policy of appointment of members in the Civil
Service in order of the date of the applications
together with the respective merits in the ap-
plicant’s qualifications and all surrounding
circumstances in order to give every applicant
an opportunity of being employed in the said
Service?

Lrovora ComuissioN REPORT.

1. Did Government deliberately lay on the
table ot the Council the report of the ILeonora
Commission in ite incomplete form? Will
(tovernment give the reason for doing so? Is
Government aware that the incompleteness of
any report when laid on the table of the
Council is misleading and unfair to members of
the Council? Will Government in the future
assist members ot the Council in the discharge
of their duties by not laying on the table any
incomplete report and/or document?

DisyissaL oF Miss Brrrrox.

1. Is Government aware that the dismissal
of Miss Britton by the Demerara Electric
Company is a clear case of victimization? If
Government is satisfied that a clear case of
victimization has been made out, will Govern-
ment consider the advisability of acquiring the
Demerara Electric Company’s business as a
going concern?

Sans Sover Kokek.

1. Will Government state the cost of erecting
the koker at Sans Souci, Wakenaam, Essequibo,
and the amount loaned to the Village Council
of Sans Souci and Melville Country District by
Government for the purpose?

2. IsGovernment aware that the gsaid erection
is a total failure and will Government cause
the debt incurred in its construction by the
said Village Council to be written off in the
books of Government ?

Tre COLONTAL SECRETARY replied

as follows :—

1. Government is unable to give any such
undertaking.

1. The complete report of the Leonora Com:
mission was laid on the table of the Legislative
Council. As the Honourable Member has
already been informed the evidence taken by
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the Commission was not printed for reasons of
economy. But a copy is available in the
Colonial Secretary’s Office for the Honourable
Member's perusal if he so wishes.

1. The matter has been fully investigated by
Government and on the facts disclosed Govern-
ment has no grounds for concluding that the
dismissal was a case of victimization.

1. The cost of the koker and drainage im-
provements was $485.38;-—$385.38 was charged
to Flood Relief Funds, and $100 was a loan to
the Village Authority.

2. The Government is advised that the koker
is not a failure: that it is capable of draining
the area efficiently, but that the dams on
either side of the channel have been neglected
and that any flooding which has occurred is
attributable to this cause.

UnrecistTEred  DENTISTS.

Mr. C. V. WIGHT, on behalf of Mr.
KING, asked the Colonial Secretary the
following question :—

1. Will Government state when legislation
will be introduced to give effect to the decision
contained in the letter dated 7th June, 1938,
from the Honourable the Colonial Secretary to
Mr. Reginald I. Carter and others to amend
Chapter 186 so as to restore the right to
practice to those unregistered persons who
were practising dentistry for a specified period
prior to the enactment of the Medical
Ordinance, 1924, such amendment to follow on
the lines of scetion 3 of the Dentists’ Act 1921
(11 and 12 Geo. V. Chapter 21).

Tui COLONTIAL SECRETARY rc-
plied :—

1. A Bill to amend the Colonial Medical
Service (Consolidation) Ordinance, Chapter

186, so as to restore the right to practise to
those unregistered persons who were practising
dentistry for a specified period prior to the fifth
day of July, 1924, to make further provision for
the control of midwives and in certain other
particulars, will be published in the Official
Guazette on 5th August.

New Amsterpan Towx Councrr (Mavonar
Erecrion) Biur, 1939.

Mr. GOMES : I beg to move that A
Bill intituled an Ordinance to make provi-
sion for the clection of a Mayor of New
Amsterdam for the remainder of the
current year and for matters in conncction
therewith” bhe read a second time. T
would like to draw the attention of lon.
members to the preamble of the Bill which
briefly sets out the reasons for the intro-
duction of this measure. The provisions
relating to the election of a Mayor for the
town of New Amsterdam ave coutained in
section 6 of the New Amwmsterdam Town
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Council Ordinance. Under those provi-
sions the election of a Mayor is to be made
on the second Friday in January in each
vear, and the Mayor remains in otlice for
the remainder of the year in which he has
been clected. There is a further provision
in the Ordinance that on the 1st of July
in every year the two senior elected Coun-
cillors shall ‘vacate their otfices. It so
happens that on the Ist of July this year
one of the two senior elected Counciliors
who was due to retire happened to be the
Mayor of New Amsterdam, and in vacat-
ing his oflice as a Councillor he also vacated
his oflice as Mayor. I say that because
the only qualification for a person to be
elected ag Mayor is that he be a Coun-
cillor. Therefore it follows that if he
ceases to hold theoffice of a Councillor
he also automatically ceases to hold the
office of Mayor on which that qualification
is based. There is a provision in the
Ovdinance to meet such a contingency,
because it is provided in section 6 (3)
that —

If a vacancy is occasioned in the office of
mayor during the year by reason of anyone
who has been elected to that cffice not accept-
ing it, or by reason of his dying or resigning or
becoming incapable to hold that office, the
Council shall, within ten days after thevacancy,
clect out of the Councillors another fit and
proper person to be mayor for the remainder or
the then current year, but no oneshallbeeligible
to fill the office of mayor for more than twn
consecutive years unless a period of one year
ut least intervenes after the expiration of his
last year of service.

Tu this case a meeting was called within
the statutory period, but for one reason
or another a sufficient number of Council-
lors did not attend that wecting. The
result was that a quoruin was not formed
and the meeting fell through, and with it
also expired the statutory time within
which a new Mayor could have been elected.
Tt therefore became necessaiy Lo pass this
enabling measure to permit the Council
to summon a special meeting to elect a
Mayor for the remainder of the year.

Clause 2 of the Bill provides that the
Town Clerk shall summon a meecting of
the Councillors to be held between certain
specific dates. At that meeting there is
to Le an election by the Councillors of a
Mavor for the remainder of the year.
It is further provided that the Town
Clerk shall preside but shall not be entitled
to vote. There is a further provision that
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in the event of a tie the Town Clerk shall
immediately report that fact to the
Governor in Council which has power to
appoint a Mayor for the remainder of the
year.

I have made reference to a meeting
called for the election of a Mayor which
fell through for the want of a sufficient
number of Councillors to form a quorum.
Since then there has been a further attempt
to get the Councillors together, but that
also failed. The position therefore is that
after the Ist of July there was an election
held to replace two senior elected Council-
lors who retired on that date, one of whom
was the Mayor. This election has been
held and the two Councillors have been
re-elected. Those two Councillors have
not yet taken the oath, so that it be-
comes necessary in this Bill to make pro-
vision to meet that contingency. This
provision has been included in the last
clause of the Bill. The Town Clerk is to
give notice to the Magistrate of the dis-
trict to administer the oath to those
Councillors who have not vet taken the
oath.

Mr. ELEAZAR : I do not kuow whether
I should ask Government to allow this Bill
to be read this day six months or whether
I should just take it, as the hon. Attorney-
General has said, that this Bill should be
given its second reading to-day. I am
inclined to think that the Bill as it stands,
and in view of the circumstances which
have given rise to its Dbeing tabled, does
not go far enough. TUnder the New
Amsterdam Town Council Ordinance a
Mayor is elected on the first Friday of
every year, and he goes out of otlice about
the same time in the following year, but
there is this provision, that “The Mayor
shall continue in office until the election of
his successor.” If those words have any
meaning at all—and they must have some
meaning —they mean that the next elec-
tion of his successor is next year January,
but the draftsman, who was a layman, did
not observe that the Mayor goes out of
office at the end of the year, and here he
goes out of office in the middle of the year.
How is it proposed to meet that difliculty ?
To meet that some lawyers fall back on
sub-section 5. They construe the words
‘“incapable to lold that oftice” to mean
his going out of oftice at a certain time
befure the election of his successor. To
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get an interpretation of that one has to go
back to the Municipal Corporations Act
of 1882, section 38 of which says :—

The mayor and aldermen shall during their
respective offices, continue to be members of
the council, notwithstanding anything in this

Act as to councillors going out of office at the
end of three years.

Here in order to get over this difficulty
resort has been made to the words “or
becoming incapable to hold that office,”
and it is said that the Mayor is out
because he is incapable to hold the oftice.
The words *“dying ” and * resigning ” have
been put in the section in order to meet
such an emergency, or some physical
inability of that nature. Some maintain
that the Mayor continues in oftice until
his successor has accepted office, and you
cannot say that because he went out you
can get out of that. If he is not re-elected
then you begin to question what should be
done. But if he is in all respects capable
the words “ incapable to hold that office ”
can only refer to physical incapacity. I
see lawyers disagree. When lawvers dis-
agree as to the interpretation of any
particular section of an Ordinance the
only place to settle the matter is the
Supreme Court ; not the Legislative Coun-
c¢il. In this case there is clearly a doubt,
and in order to settle it Government has
introduced this Bill, but it has left the
position exactly as it was. It is clearly
stated in the Ordinance that “ The Mayor
shall continue in office until the election of
his successor.” The Attorney-General
and others say that when he went out of
office he was certainly incapable, but that
is not what is written. As a matter of
fact a Mayor goes out of office on Novem-
ber 1 and le goes out of oftice as Coun-
cillor and Mayor. He is incapable for
nine days but he remains in oflice until his
successor is appointed. Government did
not want to face that situation.

Under the English Act it is nine days,
but under our law it is six months after
the going out of oflice before his successor
is eligible for election. When those two
schools of thought come into conflict the
best thing is to go to the Supreme Court,
but one does not like to do that if one can
help it. T have the unenviable notoriety
of having taken this Council on three
different occasions before the Supreme
Court and mulcted it in costs on the inter-
pretation of this very Ordinance, and it
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will be understood why it was not thought
desirable in some quarters to approach
the Supreme Court on this occasion.
Instead we have come to Government to
settle the question once and for all. This
Bill does not go far enough because it has
left the question exactly where it was.
Jt does not offer any solution at all. If
that was all that was required one knew
where to go to; the Bupreme Court is
there. We have quite a lot of jumbling
in our legislation, and this Ovrdinance
takes the cake for bad draftsmanship, but
if it is said that a Mayor is incapable to
hold ottice I do not think it can mean any-
thing other than physical incapacity. We
may differ in our interpretation of a sec-
tion but I do not think we can differ very
widely in our construction of a simple
English sentence as that one. T submit
that ib is really the attempt to constirue
those words that hag caused this trouble,
and in attempting to get over that difli-
culty Government has only gone from one
difficulty to another. Government has
only taken the view of one party to this
controversy and this Bill does not meet
the case at all. The preamble states
“ And whereas a vacancy has been occa
sioned during the year hy reason of the
fact that the late Mayor as one of the two
senior elected Councillors went out of
office.”  The Bill says that a vacancy did
arise during the year. The function of
this Council is not to interpret the
Statute; that is the function of the
Supreme Court.

The Attorney-General made one mistake
in his speech; I do not know where he
got his information from. 'The meeting
which was abortive was a meeting sum-
moned for the express purpose of swearing
in the newly elected Councillors and some
Government nominees who had not taken
the oath up to that time. It happens
that it was a good thing there was no
quorum, because if anybody thought it was
for the election of a Mayor he was wrong.
The Ordinance is very clumsily worded,
but even in its clumsiness it has fixed the
time when a Mayor shall be elected.
That question has never heen to the
Supreme Court, therefore it is diffcult to
say what is correct. Going out of oflice
is not an incapacity known to the law in
the way it has been sought to make it. I
have obtained the views of many of the
ablest lawyers of the country on the ques-
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tion. Some have agreed with me and
others have not, but T am proud to say
that a large majority agreed that those
words do not justify the construction put
on them by the other side. These private
Bills are domestic affairs, and when there
is doubt in domestic affairs we do not
usually come to Government to interpret
the law: we go to the Supreme Court for
an interpretation. T am asking Govern-
ment not to push the Bill through after
the second reading until that question has
been settled. I suggest that the Bill be
deferved for further consideration.

Mr. LUCKHOO: I think Government
should be congratulated on having taken
such early steps to introduce this Bill.
According to the terms of the New
Amsterdam Town Council Ordinance the
two senior members of the Council go
out of oflice in the month of June and an
election thercupon follows to fill the
vacancies.  Two members of the Council
went out i the month of June this year
and consequently  the Town Clerk called
for nominations, with the result that two
members were clected during the month of
July. Tt so  happened, unfortunately,
that the Mayor was not clected within
the 10 days allowed by law, and as a con-
sequence the business of the Council has
been held up. Two meetings were sum-
moned but there was no quorum, and as a
result the business of the Council has
been kept back. T therefore think Gov-
ernment  should  he  congratulated on
having taken this expeditious step with a
view to getting the Corporation to func-
tion within the limits allowed by law.

There can be no doubt that the Mayor,
having gone out of oftice at the end of
June, was not cligible to sit again as
Mayor unless he was re-elected by the
Council. Having gone out of office as a
Councillor his seat as Mayor became zpso
Jacto vacant, therefore hefore he could be
re-elected the matter will have to be
determined by the Council. Ope can
appreciate the reason for that. Before
those members can function as Council-
lors they have to be sworn in as members
of the Council. Tt cannot be contended
for a moment that the Mayor remains in
office although by effluxion of time his seab
as a Councillor was vacant. Government
has adopted the proper course in this
matter. T am not aware that any direct
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representations have heen made by the
New Awmsterdam Town Couneil for this
Bill, but there has been a great deal of
apathy shown by one or two members
of the Council who have allowed the
matter to remain in abevance instewd of
getting the decision of Government. 1t
is only proper thal this Council should
see that the Mayor s clected at the
proper time, and that the business of the
New Amsterdam Town Council is carried
on as required by the law. 1 do not think
there can he any doubt as to what is meant
by the section of the New Amsterdam
Town Council Ordinance. The Couneil
neglected to elect a Mayor within 10 days
after the vacancy arose, and therefore they
are powerless now to assert any authority
under the Ordinance for the election of a
Mayor. The only way that could be set
right was by introducing this Bill and
extending the period for the clection of a
Mayor.

I do not thiuk the matter should be
delayed in any form. The Town Clerk
feels  himself guite helpless.  Meetings

have been swinmoned by him and members
Lhave challenged his authority, with the
result that no meetings have been held.
Surely in a situation like this Government
must step in and excrcise some control.
The Bill is o proper one and should be
carried through without any delay. 1t is
not w question of the Legislative Council
determining any doubt that exists. We
say that there has been an obvious mis-
take on the part of somebody, and as a
result Government has stepped in to
remedy the present state of affairs. People
are asking who is administering the affairs
of the town? Surely we must have a
proper authority. Are we going to sit
and walt until o decision of the Supremc
Court is given in the matter ? Government
cannot show such a spirit of indifference
to the welfare of the inhabitants of the
town, and T submit that Government must
take steps to have the Bill passed.

With regard to the contention by the
hon. member for Berbice River (Mr.
Rleazar) as to what is meant by the words
*“incapable of holding oftice,” T would
point out that his oflice as Mavor was
dependent upon his seat as a Councillor,
and those mewmbers of the Council who
have not yet taken the oatl: will have to
he sworn hetfore they can take part in the
election of « Mavor.
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Mr. ELEAZAR: T rise to a point of
explanation. It is not correct to say that
meetings have not been summoned by any-

body. One meeting was summoned in
order to administer the oath to certain

members but it fell through for the want
of a quorum. Another meeting was sum-
moncd but there being only five members
who had taken the oath, and one member
for private business having asked to be
relieved, the Town Clerk notified the
other members that the meeting was off.

Mr., LEE: 1 would like to state that
Government should thank the Town Clerk
for having approached the Attorney-
Gencral or Government in order to put
this Bill through. MHe has been put in a
difiicult position. MHe is a servant of the
Corporation and gets his salary from the
ratepavers. When the doubt arose with
respect to the election of the Mayor cer-
tain ratepayers challenged his authority.
His  duty therefore was to approach
Government to introduce a Bill to remove
that doubt.  Why should the ratepayers
of New Amsterdam wait until a decision
is given by the Supreme Court in which
perhaps they will be mulcted in costs?
Why should they incur that expenditure
when they could approach Government to
have a Bill passed to remove all doubts
and clear the way for the election of a
Mayor ?

Mr. ELEAZAR: It was not the Town
Clerk who approached Government at all.

Mr. C.V. WIGH'T : Whatever may be
the legal position or divergence of opinion
as regards the law on the subject the fact
remains that this Bill will preclude any
action by injunction or otherwise against
the New Amsterdam Town Council.
There is no doubt about it, as the hon,
member for Berbice River (Mr. Eleazar)
has clearly indicated, that there is diver-
gence of opinion and legal opinion on the
question, but T am sure that as a profes-
sional man he cannot say that there can
he any two opinions on this Bill.

Mr. WOOLFORD : 1 have risen for the
express purpose of expressing the hope
that the hon. member for Berbice River
will not allow his legal opinion and those
opinions which he has obtained to influ-
ence a decision which, after all, may react
very unfavourably on the municipal affairs
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of the Town of New Amsterdam. I
believe that I know something about the
disputes that are surrounding this issue,
and I can perceive that whether this Bill
is passed or not, unless an amendment is
made in the Bill to provide for the Munici-
pality functioning with a reduced quorum
there may be no meeting at all, and the
Bill rendered ineffecsive. The particular
section of the New Amsterdam Town
Council Ordinance provides for a quorum
of five, and it is easily conceivable that
five may not attend although the Bill is
accepted hyv this Council. T would suggest
that in order to render the election of a
Mayor not improbable but possible, the
quorum should be reduced to three.

There are other matters which I would
rather not mention, but it is very important
that the Corporation should remain n esse,
because 1 happen to know that there are
certain items of public expenditure which
should be sanctioned and which are
dependent on the Council voting the money.
Unless shat is done the Council will not
be able to provide funds for certain public
works which are under construction. Are
we going to have a state of things like
that in the town ? Because it is not pos-
sible for meetings of the Council to be
held, or some agreement to he come to as
to who should be Mayor, public matters
affecting sanitation should be held up? T
do not think the hon. member for Berbice
River will subscribe to such a thing. I
do not think it would meet with public
favour. T still think and hope that his
position as Mayor will remain, bun T
think it would be helpful if he did not
persist in opposing a Bill which so largely
affects his position on the Council. I
ask him to surrender his well known
opposition to Bills which do not meet
with his approval. It is not a question of
very great public moment whether his
view or the views of other legal men are
correct. The immediate point that con-
cerns us all is that the Municipality of
New Amsterdam should function, and that
public health and public works should not
be allowed to suffer because of this dis-
satisfaction among the members of the
Council as to who should be Mayor, or
whéther the town has a Mayor.

Mr. GOMES: I agree with the hon
member on my left (Mr. Eleazar) that the
Bill does not go far enough, but I do not
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agree with him that the amendment he
suggests would take the Bill o the full
extent which he desires, for the simple
reason that he knows as well as I do, and
anyone who has perused the provisions of
the Ordinance, that they are extremely
defective not only in respect of the elec-
tion of the Mayor but in other respects.
The same state of affairs that has arisen
this year may arise next vear if the person
elected next vear happens to he one of the
elected Councillors who goes out of office.
T was quite awarc of that position before
the Bill was drafted, but no attempt was
made to remedy that defect in the Ordi-
nance. I think it is for the Council to
get together and divect thie Town Clerk to
draft a Bill which would place beyond
doubt what their duties are as Councillors.
The whole object of the Bill is to provide

for the wposition which has arisen in
respect of this year.
The hon. member secms to have some

doubt as to whether the Mayor who was
appointed at the beginning of the year
continues to be Mayor, and has suggested
that no suflicient reason has been shown
why the words © begoming incapable to
hold that oflice ” should be restricted to
physical incapacity. What he is really
suggesting is that the incapacity referred
to in the subsection does not mean legal
as well as physical incapacity. He sug-
gests that it only refers to incapacity of a
kind similar to those whicli are contained
in the preceding words, the words before
those general wovds. In other words he
suys that the specific words used are
“dying” and “resigning ” which he says
clearly refer to physical incapacity, and
that the gencral words which follow, .e.
“becoming incapable,” apply also to physi-
cal incapacity. T observe though that
the hon. member left out the word
“resigning 7 although he made reference
to it later in his speech. | do not know
if he is suggesting that because a Mayor
resigns he becomes physically incapable.
He becomes legally incapacitated by virtue
of his own act. 1 seeano reason why the
words should be limited to physical in-
capacity. Why should tley not be limited
to legal iucapacity? Under Chapter 3,
which disposes of the argnment and many
which have been put before the Courts, he
will find that the word “or” is to be read
disjunctively and not as implying simi-
larity. I see no reason why those words
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should be restricted to legal incapacity.
I do not know if the hon. member is sug-
gesting that if a Mayor becomes bankrupt
or receives an oflice of profit from the
Council, or enters into a contract with
the Council he can still be Mayor. I do
not think he goes as far as that. Those
are all legal incapacities.

The hon. member also said that the
words “ The Mayor shall continue in oftice
until the election of his successor ” must
be given effect to. I agree with him, but
if he will look at the position of those
words he will see that they follow immedi-
ately after the provision for the election
of a Mayor “on the second Friday in the
month of January in every year.” That
provision is obviously intended to ensure
that the town should have a Mayor dur-
ing the first few days in January. It is a
proper provision and does not conflict
with any of the other provisions in the
Ordinance, Dbecause the person  who
happens to he Mayvor on the 31lst of
December will continuce to be o Councillor
on the lst of Junuwury. ‘T'he position that
has arisen this year is that on June 1 the
Mayor ceased to he a Councillor, and if it
was ever intended that the Mayor, not-
withstanding that he vacates his oflice on
the Council, should continue to be Mayor
until the election of his successor such
words would have been expressly inserted
in the Ovdinance. Surely if the only
qualification of a person for the office of
Mayor is that he should be a Councillor,
aad it was intended that notwithstanding
the fact that he ceases to hold that quali-
fication he should continue as Mayor until
his successor is elected, one would cer-
tainly expect that to be expressly stated
in the Ordinance as it has been expressly
stated in the Municipal Corporations Act
of 1882. My friend has referred to that
Act Dbut it has no application to this
matter because it deals with a totally
different matter.

No official communication has been
received from the Town Council with
respect to this matter, but it has come to
the knowledge of Government from other
sources, and in the circumstances it was
considered only right and proper that this
measure should be put before the Council.
I think the hon. member for Bastern
Berbice (Mr. Luckhoo) has dealt fully
with the reasons why this Bill should he
introduced and why it should be passed.

4 Avcust, 1939.
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I regret to have to inform members of
the Council that before moving the second
reading I omitted to move a motion for
the suspension of the Standing Rules and
Orders in view of the fact that the Bill
was only pubiished on August 1. T there-
fore now propose to move that the Stand-
ing Rules and Orders be suspended, after
which [ shall move a motion for the
second reading of the Bill. Having regard
to the fact that the only four members of
the Council who have spoken are lawyers
T wish to safeguard myself. (laughter).

Tee PRESIDENT: Tt is a matter for
the Council to decide. The motion is that
the Standing Rules and Orders be sus-
pended in order to proceed with the Bill
without due notice. It is stipulated in
the Standing Rules and Orders that the
second reading should not be taken before
seven “days have elapsed from the date of
publication of a Bill in the Gazette.

Mr.. ELEAZAR : In view of what has
heen said by the hon. member for New
Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford) I do not think
I should stand between the people of New
Awsterdam.  With  Your Excellency’s
permission, especially after securing the
Assistant  Attorney-General’s agreement
that the position i3 much the same, I
withdraw my opposition.

Mr. WOOD (Conservator of Forests)
seconded.

Motion put, and agreed to.

Mr. GOMES : I beg to move that « A
Bill intituled an Ordinance to make provi-
sion for the election of a Mayor of New
Amsterdam  for the remainder of the
current vear and for matters in connection
therewith” be read a second time.

Mr. WOOD seconded.
Question put, and agreed to.
Bill vead a second time.

The Council vesolved itself into Com-
mittee to consider the Bill clause by
clause.

Clause Z—\layor to be elected between
the 10th and 19th August, 1939.

Mr. GOMES: In view of the remarks
made by the hon. member for New
Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford) who seemed,
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from information he has received, rather
apprehensive as to whether a quorum will
ever be provided at any subsequent meet-
ing that may be called, I think it would be
wise to move an amendment of this Bill so
as to provide that any three Councillors
should be sufficient to form a quorum.
The Ordinance provides that five Council-
lors shall form a quorum.

Mr. ELEAZAR: From what the hon.
member has said it is quite possible that
certain members of the Council may elect
to stand out.

Mr. LUCKHOO : I think a quorum of
three would be erring on the other side.
There are nine members of the Council,
three nominated and six elected. 1 do
not think there should be any dilliculty in
getting a quorum. The difliculty arose
through some misunderstanding between
certain parties. That is really the great
obstacle in this matter. I need nct make
any further statement on that point. A
quorum of three would not be satisfactory.

Mr. ELEAZAR: If we made the
quorum three that would not prevent all
nine members from attending.

Mr. LUCKHOO : I think
be better.

Mr. GOMES: In view of the remarks
made by the hon. member for New
Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford) I suggested
that an amendment might be moved to
reduce the quorum from five to thrce.
Perhaps the hon. member might move the
amendment.

Mr. WOOLFORD : I move that after
sub-clause 2 of clause 2 there be inserted
the following amendment :—

Any three Councillors shall form a sufficient
quorum at such meeting.

Mr. HUMPHRYS : T am opposing that
amendment on principle. I have listened
very carefully to what has been said by
hon. members, and it scems to me, if I
may say so, that the Town Council of
New Amsterdam are really forgetting that
they are a public body with respensibili-
ties. Tt seems to me they are playving o
game of hide and seek, forgetting that they
owe a duty to the public, and that they are
a corporate body with certain dutics 1o
perform. It has Dbeen suggested that at

four would
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an important meeting for the election of a
Mayor it is likely that there is going to be
bias on one side and certain members will
stay away so that there will not be a
quorum of five. I submit that if the
New Amsterdam Town Council con-
tinues to carry on in that way Govern-
ment would be well advised to wipe
them out. T am not speaking too strongly
on the matter, and I am surprised
that the hon. member for New Amster-
dam (Mr. Woolford) should attempt to
put forward an amendment of that kind.
It is a disgrace to the Municipality to
have to come here to get an amendment
al all. The Ordinance is quite -clear.
Government is giving them an opportunity
to carry on, but a motion might well have
been woved in this Council to terminate
their existence. The suggestion has been
made to reduce the number requirved for a
gquorum.  Why should there be a quorumn
of three? Why should there be any stay-
ing away of members ? The present quorum
should remain, and there should be added
after the word ¢ votes ” in the second line
of sub-clause (4) the words “or for any
other cause” so as to give the Governor
in Council the power to appoint a Mayor
if Councillors stay away. Ihat is the only
way to bring members of the Council to
their senses. 1 hope hon. members will
not consider my remarks too strong. This
thing is becoming a farce. If five Coun-
cillors do not turn up, let the Governor in
Council appoint a Mayor.

Mr. ELEAZAR : T do nob take the hon.
member seriously. I think his strong
words are due to the weakness of his judg-
ment.  Why should the mewbers of the
New Amsterdam Town Council be abused ?
I do not Iknow what is happening in
(Georgetown, but the hon. mewber has no
right to tlog them over our heads. If the
quorum was reduced to three that would
not prevent all of the nine Councillors
from attending. It is a safeguard that
they should 1urn up. Is that any reason
why the Governor in Council should take
charge of the Council? Isn’t there more
reason for taking charge of the George-
town Town Council ? They were taken Lo
the Supreme Court and lost thousands of
dollars and yet we have heard no sugges-
tion that the Governor in Council should
take charge of their alfairs,  We saw the
wisdom of approaching this Conncil but
the hon. member has come here to chide
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us. His remarks weve needlessly strong
and he should withdraw them.

Mr. De AGUTAR : Therc seems to be
so much disagreewment among the lawyers
in the Council that I think an ordinary
layman like myself wmight be excused if he
joined in the debate at this stage. As T
understand the position there scems to be
some difficulty about obtaining a quorum.
I would invite attention to clause 3 of the
Bill. It seems to me that difficulty arose
as a result of the fact that there were two
new members who had not been sworn, and
the meeting not having been properly con-
stituted, the two new members could not
be sworn. Clause 3 now provides that
those two members may be sworn, and
how they should be sworn. That being
so an amendment is no longer necessary,
and I agree with a good deal that has
fallen from the lips of the hon. member
for Eastern Demerara (Mr. Humphrys)
that the Town Council of New Amsterdam
must seriously recognise its duty to the
public, and if it does not carry out that
duty it should be scrapped. T will record
‘my vote against the amendment. It is
time- the Council was made to understand
that it has an obligation to the ratepayers
of the town.

Mr. C. V. WIGHT : In supporting the
remarks of the hon. member for lastern
Demerara (Mr. Humphrys), though per-
haps in language not as strong as he used,
I would like to say that some of them
were very apt. I was under the impres-
sion when he rose, however, that perhaps
he might have been mistaken as to which
draft Bill he was about to discuss, and T
only hope that if his language is as strong
in the second instance perhaps he might
get my support in a modified form. One
must realise that it is a public body doing
public duty. T am theiefore not going to
support the amendment moved by the
hon. member for New Amsterdam (Mr.
Woolford), on the ground that I sincerely
hope that if there is no quorum at the
meeting to be summoned the Attorney-
General will move the Supreme Court
under section 152 of Chapter 87 fora
writ of mandamus or for an injunction to
cowpel the Courcil to perform its duty.
Tt seems to me regrettable when one
speaks of democracies and suggests the
enlargement of village councils, and when
the trend of modern thought is to allow as
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much as possible democratic principles of
government, that wmen who consider it
their duty to try to lead others should
not first of all make themselves fully con-
versant with the provisions of the Ordi-
nance under which they are to administer
the affuirs of the town. Surely where you
have a certain number of men who, by the
positions they occupy, are to be considered
leading citizens of the cowmunity, it is
not asking too much of them to suggest
that they should sit down—not as it were
in a kindergarten school—and consider im-
partially and recognise what they have to
do and what responsibility they owe to
those whom they represent.

Tr: COLONIAL SECRETARY : I be-
lieve there were two very good reasons for
the failure to obtain a quorum on the last
occasion. One was that it was felt by
some of the Councillors that the Town
Clerk had no authority to summon the
meeting, and the second reason was given
by the hon. member for Central Demerara
(Mr. De Aguiar). Two of the Councillors
turned up but could not take their seats
because they had not taken the oath, and
they were unable to take the oath because
of the lack of a quorum. In view of that
Government is unable to accept the amend-
ment suggested by the hon. member for
New Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford). Govern-
ment feels convinced that there will be a
quorum on the occasion on which a meet-
ing is summoned by the Town Clerk as set
out in the Bill.

Mr. ELEAZATR: All the members who
have spoken so far are not aware of the
true situation. There are only five mem-
bers now who can form a quorum. Four
members are yet to take the oath, so that
if two members keep out it cannot be done.
Kven if four members attend it cannot be
done. If the quorumn was reduced to three
yvou are likely to get that number, and
with the four members who will take the
outh you will have an attendance cf seven
members. Members have not had sufi-
cient information on the subject. Where
is the necessity for all this parade of
strong language ? Surely the New Amster-
dam Town Council kncws its business.

Mr. LEE: T am appealing to the hon.
member for New Amsterdam (Mr. Wool-
foid). to withdraw bis amendwent. Know
ing the elected Councillors as he does and,
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as I do, I am sure there will be no difficulty
in forming a quorum for the election of a
Mayor. There are six elected Councillors,
and I feel sure that five of them will turn

up.

Mr. C/ V. WIGHT : With regard to the
point made by the hon. member for Ber-
bice River (Mr. Eleazar) I think section
15 (2) of Chapter 87 provides the remedy
for the situation mentioned by him.

Mr. GOMES: T do not think hon.
members have paid the attention that
ought to have been paid to the wording
of clause 3 which provides for the contin-
gency hon. members have mentioned. The
whole object of the clause is that those
members who have not been sworn should
attend the meeting. The Magistrate will
be given notice of the meeting, and prior
to the election of the Mayor he will
administer the oath to those members who
have not been sworn.

Mr. LUCKHOO : But T think in that
case a quorum will be requirved, :nd a
quorum requires five members.

Mr. GOMIES: This Bill contains a
specific provision to meet the emergency
that has arisen.  Clause 3 states :—

3. The Town Clerk shall give notice of the
date of the meeting to the Magistrate of the
Berbice Judicial District and the Magistrate
shall attend the meeting and shall, prior to the
election of a Mayor, administer the oath to any
Councillor who is at present and who has not
previously taken the oath.

It is a specific provision.

Mr. ELEAZAR: As T understand it,
five members must be there to form a
meeting. Supposing only the four mem-
bers to be sworn attend, could the Magis-
trate swear them in? I do not thiuk that
is what is intended.

Mr. LEE: Clause 2 says it is not a
meeting of the Council but a meeting of
the Councillors, and it does not say there
must be a quorum,

Mr. WOOLFORD: 1 am unable to
withdraw my amendment. The hon. mem-
ber for Eustern Demerara (Mr. Humphrys)
expressed some surprise at my moving
it. It is because I know the situa-
tion in the town as well as any other
person that I have made the suggestion.

LecistaTive CoOUNCIL.
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The remarks of the hon. member for
jerbice River (Mr. Eleazar) are very per-
tinent. There is a possibility of the
Council not being properly convened, and
T know what has happened on a previous
occasion ig likely to be repeated. That is
to say that assuming there is any irregu-
larity about this merting we are going to
have an application to the Supreme Court.
It has happened before, and I feel that no
encouragement should be given for that to
happen again. The hon. member for Kast
Demerara (Mr. Humphrys), who is likely
to influence Government, must remember
the experience he enjoys in his own con-
stituency. The remedy he suggests f.r
the Town Council could be suggested for
the village councils from Anns Grove to
Buxton. That is not a remedy for a poli-
tician to suggest. It is because of my
interest in iny constituency, and because I
do not want the New Amsterdam Town
Council to be dissolved, that T have made
the suggestion. Tt is a matter of con-
siderable importance, and I ask for some
adjournment of the Council at this stage
in order that the position should be ascer-
tained by telephonic enquiry from New
Amsterdamw. | do not know who have
taken the oath and what is the present
strength of the Council. Members of the
Council do not know the situation, and
Government is inclined to the view that
my amendment is not necessary. Unless
T am convinced that it is not necessary I
that it be submitted to the
Council. 1f it is vetoed 1 shall have dis-
charged my duty. Government is assum-
ing a risk because it is Government’s Bill.
Government is acting on its own initiative,
and I say that Government is not suffi-
ciently informed of the situation.

will  ask

Mr. LUCKHOO: T think I can throw
some light on the subject. The hon.
wember for New Amsterdam (Mr. Wool-
ford) has said that he is not aware of the

present strength of the Council.  There
are five Councillors who can function

under the Ordinance, but with respect to
the swearing in of new members I should
like to draw attention to section 15 of the
New Amesterdam Town Council Ordinance
which states that every Councillor shall,
before voting or sitting at any meeting of
the Council, take and subscribe to the oath.
It implies that hefore the swearing in can
take place there must be a fully con-
stituted Council. I think a quorum of
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four would he quite in order. I agree with
the suggestion to reduce the quorum be-
cause I know there is likely to be some
difficulty in getting a quorum of five.
One of the five Councillors may be
absent for very good reason, and there
will not e a quorum. The swearing in
must take place in the presence of the
Councillors. That has been the practice
observed during the last 34 years. We
should reduce the quorum in the special
circumstances of the case. My advice to
Government is to make the quorum four.
I do not wish to wmake it appear that
members of the Council are not worthy of
their civic responsibility.

Mr. LEE: It seems to me that mem-

bers are overlooking the object of this
Bill. Tt is not for the purpose of clear-

ing any doubt bui to give special power to
a Magistrate to swear those members of
the Council whe have not yet taken the
oath. T am positive that as soon as the
members have been sworn o quorum will
be formed.

Mr. JACKSON: It is an extremely
cdifficult thing to understand lawyers
(laughter), and I have no doubt that if this
Bill had come before a Council composed
solely of laymen it would have been dis-
posed of an lhour or morve ago. Mo say
that a quorum is necessary before the new
Councillors could be sworn is to fight shy
of the special provision made in this Bill.
The Bill must be regarded as an enabling
Bill to permit a Mayor to be elected.
If the Bill makes special provision for the
swearing in of the new Councillors, then
the question of having a quorum before
those Councillors wre sworn is disposed
of. The Bill contains a special provision
for a Magistrate to appear and swear in
the Councillors who have not yet taken
the oath, and I think it is wasting the
time of this Council to argue that a
quorum is necessary for that purpose.
All that is necessary is that the Town
Clerk should inform the Magistrate of the
meeting, and the Magistrate will attend
and administer the oath to the new
Councillors.

Mr. LUCKHOQO : I can never be accused
of wasting the time of the Council when I
make my contribution to a debate. The
short title of the Bill states :—
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1. This Ordinance may be cited as the New
Amsterdam Town Council (Mayoral Election)
Ordinance, 1939, and shall be construed with
the New Amsterdam Town Council Ordinance,
and any amending Ordinance.

I think there may be some difficulty in
getting the required quorum of five and I
suggest that the hon. member for New
Amsterdam (Mr. Woolford) should make
it four, and he would get my support.

Mr. ELEAZAR: [Laymen should not
obtrude their attempts to interpret law.
There must be o quorum to start a meet-
ing.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: The hon. Mr.
Jackson is not so wrong as the hon. mem-
ber for Berbice River (Mr. Eleazar) thinks
he is. I think the clear intention of the
clause is that the Magistrate attends the
meeting and administers the oath to those
Councillors who have not yet been sworn.
They then meet and elect a Mayor. It ig
perfectly clear what meaning that clause
carries, hut if there is any doubt T would

. suggest that the clause be amended to

make it clear that prior to the meeting
the Magistrate should attend and admin-
ister the oath.

The Council adjourned for the luncheon
recess until 2 p.w.

2 pom.—

Mr. GOMES : Before the adjournment,
the hon. member for Kastern Demerara
(Mr. Humphrys) suggested that in order to
make the matter clear an amendment
should be made to clause 3 of the Bill.
There is some doubt among hon. members
as to whether when the Councillors meet
there should be a quorum of Councillors,
excluding those who have not taken the
oath. I think the hon. member has over-
looked the fact that a Councillor becomes
so the moment he is appointed or elected,
and there is no necessity for him to take
the oath unless he desires to sit and vote.
He remains a Councillor notwithstanding
the fact that he has not taken the oath.
The wording of clause 2 makes it sufli-
ciently clear that the Town Clerk must
summon a meeting of the Councillors.
Clause 3 provides that before the election
of a Mayor, which would be the only busi-
ness before the meeting, the Magistrate
must administer the oath to those Coun-
cillors who had not previously taken the
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oath. In order to make it abundantly
clear, the words ¢ before the Councillors
sit and transact the business of the
meeting ” may be substituted for the words
“ the meeting prior to the election of a
Mayor ” in line 3 of clause 3 of the Bill.
The clause will then read :—

The Town Clerk shall give notice of the date
of the meeting to the Magistrate of the Berbice
Judicial District and the magistrate shall at-
tend the meeting and shall, before the Coun-
cillors sit and transact the business of the
meeting, administer the oath to any Councillor
who is present and who has not previously
taken the oath.

I consider that to be the proper form
of amendment, because a person may be a
member of the Town Council or of the
Legislative Council in name or designa-
tion, but he does not actually become a
member until he actually takes his seat.

Tee CHAIRMAN : With that explana-
tion as to the amendment in clause 3, I
shall first put the question ¢ That clause 2
stand part of the Bill.”

Mr. HUMPHRYS: Before you put
clause 2—I may perhaps be abundantly
cautious—would it not be proper as a
matter of caution to put in clause 2 (4)
the words “or for any other cause” after
the words “ on account of an equality of
votes ”? The reason is this: Although
you say that a quorum is to be and that
those gentlemen may go and be sworn be-
fore the meeting—and I am entirely in
agreement with the hon. Mr. Gomes’s
remarks - if those men do not go at all
there will never be any quorum. I do not
know what is the state of affairs on the
New Amsterdam Town Council, but I
think the Governor in Council should
have power under the section to appoint a
Mayor, if it is found that on account of
an equality of votes or for any other cause
that is not done, so that they will not
have to come hack to this Council for
some legislation or to get a mandamus
from the Supreme Court to meet the situa-
tion. Tt will be the cautious thing, there-
fore, in order to put the matter beyond
doubt to put in those words I have
suggested. I do not know what causes
may arise, but it all seems very unsatis-
factory. I move that as an amendment.

Mr. ELEAZAR: I do not think that
is necessary. I must protest against this
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continuous insinuation as if there is some-
thing so glaringly wrong. Government
on this occasion closes its eves and turns
away from its obvious duty of settling the
matter once and forall. I do not see
why there should be any threat on account
of an equality of votes or for any other
cause. On the Georgetown Town Council
when there is an equality of votes the
election of a Mayor is taken to the rate-
payers. This Bill suggests that if there is
an equality of votes the matter must go
back to the Governor in Council. You
can alter that to ratepayers, as is the case
in Georgetown, but not talk of any other
cause. I am trying to get Government to
straighten this matter out, and I am not
here to back anything after that.

Mr. WALCOTT : T am sorry I cannot
agree with my hon. friend, the member for
Berbice River, because I think he is
distinctly suffering from victimisation
amongst the lhon. members who have
spoken this morning. I was going te
suggest as an alternative, that we turn the
place into a Country District if they can-
not get on without Government control.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I think the hon.
member for Berbice River (Mr. Eleazar)
has missed my point. Tt is this: Assum-
ing there is no quorum, the Ordinance
only provides for an equality of votes, and
since there is no quorum what is the
effect ? They will have to come back here
for some legislation.

Mr. WOOLFORD : 1 am going to make
an appeal to hon. members of this Council.
In every way I have emphasized the fact
that this Bill has not the approval of the
existing New Amsterdam Town Council.
So far they have not been consulted as a
Body. Government has been forced to
act on its own initiative on account of the
situation which has arisen. It may be
described as a surmise without any founda-
tion. It is all based upon the supposition
that something may happen. When I sug-
gested that there should be a quorum,
hon. members said there was no neces-
sity for providing against that. One hon.
member benefiting from the adjournment
has come back and suggested that the
words “or for any other cause” be in-
serted in the clause. There is likely to be
other causes, and I prefer the words to be
“for any other reason.” That is a more
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comprehensive phrase. I agree with him
that some interpolation is necessary at
that stage. As I read the section, it is
only because there may be equality of votes
that there may be no election. That is
the only restriction in the clause. Why
not widen it and say “for any other
reason ”? No one can anticipate the reason,
and there is no doubt about it. Tt does
not matter what you provide in an Ordi-
nance it sometimes happens that you can
find a flaw in it. T still think there should
be a quorum fixed. Tt is only my opinion,
but it is endorsed by someone who has far
more intimate knowledge of the psychology
of the people of the town than I. He
supports it. The hon. member for Berbice
River has surrendered his own personal
views in this matter, and I suggest that
we pass this Bill this afternoon even in an
inverted form. I think that either my
phrase or that of the hon. member for
Hastern Demerara should be put in.

I agree that the nccessity has arisen,
and although one does not care to go into
the reason, T have risen to ask that theve
be some provision which will secure the
attendance of these gentlemen at the meet-
ing, whether it is duly constituted or not,
to elect a Mayor, otherwise the town of
New Amsterdam will be subjected to the
indignity of having a Mayor thrust upon
it. As representative of New Amsterdam
I protest against the possibility of such a
thing happening. This is a matter in
which certainly I am concerned and thehon.
members for Berbice River (Mr. Eleazar)
and Eastern Berbice (Mr. Luckhoo) are
particularly interested, and 1 do ask hon.
members of this Council to allow not my
views but the wishes of those hon. mem-
bers who reside there to be met.

Tar COLONTAL SECRETARY : T was
a little surprised at the amendment moved
by the hon. member for Eastern Demerara,
having regard to what he said at this
morning’s meeting. He rather surprised
me when he urged a number to form a
quorum because, as he said, if the Coun-
cillors do not turn up at the meeting it
shows that they do not wish to continue
to function as a Town Council and Gov-
ernment can step in. But I am rather
surprised at his attitude this afternoon.
What would happen after the other Coun-
cillors have taken the oath and they are
still unable to get a quorum? It would
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then be the duty of Government to con-
sider what action should be taken to
enable the business of the town to be
carried on.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I was trying to
save the Councillors from themselves and
the Government trouble, if the Govern-
ment’s views are somewhat similar to
mine. | entirely agree that if they do not
take the proper action and elect a Mayor,
Government should do so. Thereforo in the
circumstances I do not press my amend-
ment but withdraw it.

Mr. ELEAZAR: I do not wish to
speak again on this matter, but I do wish
to stand here and protest against any
suggestion that for any reason whatever
Government should rush in and reduce the
status of the Council by forcing a Mayor
on the town. To prevent the semblance
of any such thing, I withdraw all possible
objections to the Bill, but I will not
remain quiet at any sueh thing. I do not
think there is any need for it to come
about. T wish to say in answer that if it
does come about, I shall be the oneto say
that Government has brought it about as
it closes its eyes to the right thing to De
done.

Question put, and agreed to.

Clause 3—Administration

new Councillors.

of oath to

Mr. GOMES: I move that the words
“ before the Councillors sit to transact
the business of the meeting” be inserted
in lieu of the words ¢ prior to the election
of a Mayor” in the third line, and the
word “at” in the fourth line be deleted.
The latter is a printers’ error.

Mr. ELEAZAR : With regard to clause
9__

Tee CHAIRMAN: I am very sorry.
The Committee has finished with clause 2
and caunot go back to it.

Mr. ELEAZAR : I move the insertion
of a provision that in case of an equality
the election should be referred to the rate-
payers as in the case of the Georgetown
Town Council.

Mr. WOOLFORD : I must ask for some
explanation. Am Inot right to think that
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by this amendment a notice of the date of
the meeting is to be given by the Town
Clerk to the Magistrate of the district,
who in turn will have power to administer
the oath ? Is not that all ? I do not know
whether I have heard rightly. The only
security this amendment gives is that the
Town Clerk gives notice to the Magistrate
and the Magistrate convenes or intimates
to the Councillors that they should attend
to take the oath. I suppose the oath is
to be given prior to the election of the
Mayor. That does not secure that the
meeting will be convened for the purpose
of the election of a Mayor. My point is,
whenever this meeting is constituted, with
the present law requiring a minimum
attendance of five Councillors that may
not be secured. There is some doubt
about four. The summoning of a meeting
does not secure attendance. The adwinis-
tering of the oath does not secure attend-
ance ; it only conforms with a statutory
provision that before a Councillor can
perform duties he takes an oath. Tsit
not the object of meeting here to secure
that the Town Council meetings are pre-
sided over by a Mayor? I am still in
doubt as to how this amendment is going
to secure the election of a Mayor.

Tune CHAIRMAN : Is it not a similar
case in the Legislative Council when there
is a new election? The meeting ix per-
fectly in order notwithstanding the fact
that nobody has taken the oath. Every-
body takes the oath at the first meeting.
Is the position not exactly the same ?

Mr. WOOLFORD: Is there any desire
on the part of Elected members not to
attend a meeting? You are providing for
a situation that may occur in the inter-
regnum. There had been by-elections and
two vacancies were filled. You have two
contending factions—one saying there
must be the election of a new Mayor and
the other saying that the Town Clerk has
no authority to summon a meeting for the
election of a Mayor. We are trying to
give the Town Clerk that authority. Can
you compel by legislation the doing of any
personal act in the world? Can you force
a man to attend a meeting and force him
to take the oath ? You cannot compel him
to do so. You have had it here, when
certain members attending a meeting of
this Council found there was going to be a
quorum and remained in the gallery.
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Mr. GOMES: I would like to know
what remedy the lon. member suggests,
If everyone cannot be made to be in
attendance at a meeting, does he suggest
that the members should be subpenaed to
attend the meeting ? Does he suegest that
after that has been done further pressure
be brought upon them to exercise the
vote? T fail to understand what the hon.
member is suggesting.

Mr. WOOLFORD: My suggestion is
that there can be no quoruw. If anyone
fails to understand, it isx not my fault. I
can only give the reason, but cannot con-
vey understanding to anyone,

Mr. LUCKHOO : T do not think there
is any (difliculty in obtaining a quorum.
Two members of the Town Council are . to
be sworn and possibly a third is to follow.
In that case there is a suflicient number
of Councillors to be in attendance to carry
out the clection of a Mayor. T think the
amendment proposed ought to be sufficient.

Amendment put, and agreed to.

Trrne, PreamsrLe axp Exacrive Cravse.
Mrv. KLEAZAR : T do not like to inter-
feve with this clause but it reads :—

Whereas it is provided by subsection (3) of
section 6 of the New Amsterdam Town Council
Ordinance, Chapter 87, that if a vacancy is
occasioned in the office of Mayor during the
year by reason of anyone, infer alia, becoming
incapable to hold that office the Council shall
within ten days alter the vacancy elect out of
the Councillors another fit and proper person
to be Mayor for the remainder of the then cur-
rent year,

And whercas a vacancy has been occasioned
during the year by reason of the fact that the
late Mayor as one of the two senior clected
Councillors went out of office ;

And whercas the Council within the time
preseribed by the said Ordinance have failed to
elect « Mayor out of the Councillors;

And whereas it is expedient to provide for
the clection of a Mayor at New Amsterdam:

I strongly protest against this preamble
because it does not suggest a word about
doubts having arisen, and I think it is due
to the world that that should he put in.
It is nothing more than serious doubts,
which  took us one and a half days to
unravel and which we are still blundering
over. There s no certainty  that  there
was any vacancy for the eclection of a
Mayor and the Councillors failed to do it.
The Councillovs were doubtful whether
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that was so, and that is why the matter is
before this Council. T want that to be
made clear in the preamble. T am ready
to sacrifice whatever I feel about the
matter, but I am not inclined to let it go
to the world that no doubt had arisen.
I do not think this Council can suffer it-
self to conclude that no doubts had arisen.
It should be stated in the preamble that
serious doubts had arisen, and that is why
this Bill is being brought. I think the
preamble should read :

‘Whereas doubts have arisen as to whether a
vacancy for Mayor—

Tar CHAIRMAN : If the hon. member
wishes any alteration lie can no doubt
move an amendment, otherwise I shall put
the question.

Mr. ELEAZAR: Very well, sir. I
move as an amendment the insertion in
the second recital to the preamble of the
following words « doubts have arisen as to
whether ” between the words ‘¢ whereas”
and “a vacancy.” The preamble will then
read :—

Whereas doubts have arisen as to whether a
vacancy has been occasioned during the year

by reason of the fact that the late Mayor as
one of two senior elected Councillors went out

of office.
Amendment put, and lost.

1
Question ‘ That the title, preamble and
enacting clause stand part of the Bill”
put, and agreed to.

The Council resumed.

Mr. GOMES : T think it is well that the
Standing Rules and Ovders having been
suspended I may proceed with the motion
for the third reading of the Bill.

Tre PRESIDENT : I am afraid the
hon. member will have to move the sus-
pension of the Standing Rules and Orders
again. The motion was to take the second
reading. You may proceed with the other
Bills, and if it suits the counvenience of
hon. members you may suspend the Stund-
ing Orders to take the third reading.

Mr. GOMES: I give notice that at a
later stage or the next or subsequent meet-
ing of the Council T shall move that the
Bill be read a third thme and passed.

4 Avagust, 1939.
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Mr. GOMES: I move the suspension
of the Standing Rules and Orders of the
Council in order to enable the following
Bill to be taken through all its stages and
passed to-day :—

A Bill intituled An Ordinance to prescribe
the method to he adopted in computing the
taxes and rates to be levied by the Mayor and
Town Council of Georgetown in respect of the

years nineteen hundred and thirty-nine and
nineteen hundred and forty.

Mr. WOOD (Conservator of Forests)
seconded.

Question put, and agreed to.

Mr. GOMES: I move that “ A Bill in-
tituled An Ordinance to prescribe the
method to be adopted in computing the
taxes and rates to be levied by the Mayor
and Town Council of Georgetown in respect
of the years ninetecn hundred and thirty-
nine and nineteen hundred and forty” be
read a second time. I feel in doing so
that I can with certainty say that all hon.
members of this Council are fully aware of
the reasons for the introduction of this
measure. 1 may, however, qualify that
statement by saying all hon. members
with the exception of the hon. Attorney-
General. Nevertheless I feel I am not
relieved of the duty of making some
observations on the history of the matter,
and also specifically dealing with the
clauses of the Bill.

As hon. members are aware, under sec-
tion 153 of the Georgetown Town Council
Ordinance, the Town Council is enabled to
make the general appraisements of all city
properties within a period of every ten
years. We kunow that the last general
appraisements were made in the year 1927,
and that in the year 1937 there arose
another occasion for the Town Council to
appoint appraisers and make the general
appraisements of all properties in the City
of Georgetown. It was to have happened
in that year, and the Town Council
appointed three appraisers to re-appraise
certain properties in the City. Also dur-
ing that year the Town Council met and a
decision was taken to have the general
appraisements of all propertics made dur-
ing that year, so that there would be a
basis upon which the rates and taxes for
1938 could be computed. Whether the
appraisers were in fact appointed for this
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specific purpose, the fact is that they com-
menced on their work in the year 1937.
Before they had proceeded to any extent
on the work it became obvious that the
appraisements could not be concluded be-
fore the end of that year, and therefore it
became necessary for the Georgetown
Town Council to approach Government
for enabling legislation to provide a
method or basis upon which the rates and
taxes for 1938 could be computed, as
under the old appraisements the basis of
the 1927 appraisements came to an end on
the 31st December, 1937.  As the result of
the Council’s communication to Govern-
ment an Ordinance was passed in Decem-
ber, 1937, and that Ordinance provided
that the vates and taxes for the year 1938
should be computed upon the basis on
which the rates and taxes had been com-
puted in the previous year of 1937. There
were two provisos to that provision.
Although the valuations which were in
force in 1937 should continue in force in
1938, ther would be subjected to any
re-appraisement in 1938 with respect to im-
provements made on properties, or appeals
for decrease by those who maintained that
their properties had deteriorated in value.
Section 4 of the Georgetown Rating
Ordinance, 1937, also concluded by saying
that * the general appraixements when com-
pleted shall be the general appraisements
in force for the year 1939”7 As T have
intimated, the general appraisements were
commenced in 1937 but not completed
until during the ycar 1938, and in 1939
the Town Council proceeded in accord-
ance with section 4 of the Ordinance
to assess and levy their taxes and
rates upon the basis provided for
under that Ovdinance. The 1937 basis
was continued in force by that Ordi-
nance during the year 1938, and to-day
the Town Council have collected and
received rates and taxes for the year 1939
upon the hasis of the general appraise-
ments which were completed in the year
1938.

Against the general appraisements there
were over 300 appeals, which in course
of time came on for hearing before
the Magistrate of the Georgetown Judicial
District. DBefore proceeding to hear tho
appeals, the Magistrate prescribed or com-
piled a formula of his own and gave all
interested parties notice that in the dever-
mination of the appeals he would be
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guided by that formula. The result was,
that several appeals were heard and deter-
mined and no further action taken in
respect of them. But there was a batch
of appeals in respect of which objections
were taken to the Magistrate’s hearing.
One of the objections was that the Magis-
trate was the owner of property in the City
and therefore was an interested party and
thus precluded from hearing any appeals
from appraisements. The Magistrate gave
his decision on that point, and found him-
self unable to agree with the objection taken.
The representatives of the objectors, or
the objectors themselves, did not leave the
matter there. They were not satisfied
with the Dlagistrate’s decision, and took
the matter a step further with the result
that they filed a writ in the Supreme
Court in which they asked for certain
declarations from the Court. One of the
grounds on which a declaration was asked
was that tho appraisers had failed to take
the oath in compliance with scction 154
of the Georgetown Town Council Ordi-
nance, and that the Mayor also had failed
to administer that oath to the appraisers.
On that ground oue of the declarations
asked for was that by reason of the non-
compliance with that section of the
Ordinance the whole of the general
appraisements were improper and invalid.
The mnatter came on for hearing in the
Supreme Court and the learned Chief
Justice decided that the objection was
fatal on that ground alone without con-
sidering the other matters. The learned
Chicf Justice held that the general
appraisements were invalid and an interim
injunction was granted precluding the
Georgetown Town Council from acting on
the general appraisements. The effect of
that injunction was that the Town Council
were restrained from continuing to collect
rates and taxes on the general appraise-
ments for the year 1939.

I have mentioned one objection which
had been stated in the Magistrate’s Court
by certain appellants, and another ground
of objection which was put before the
Supreme Court. The result is, there is a
decision of the Supreme Court that the
general appraisements for 1939 are invalid.
That fact in itself made it necessary for
the Town Council to approach Government
to introduce a measure of some description
suo as to enable them to continue the
colleciion of rates and taxes for this year.
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That has bheen done, and careful attention
has been given to the matter. It has been
cdecided that in all the cireumstances of the
case it would be desiratde that the basis
upon which computation is to he made
should be that which existed in the year
1937.  That has been done in this Bill.

As everyone knows, sir, it is a questiou
that has engaged the minds of the mew-
bers of the Georgetown Town Council. T
have no doubt that the time has come
when an eftfort should be made to decide
upon a proper basis upon which uhe
‘appraisements should be made, but that is
a matter which will take time. It is for
that reason, the provisions of this Bill
should be extended not only to cover 1939
but also the next year. 1 may wention, as
there was some debate this iworning in
connection with the Bill dealing with the
only other Town Council in the Colony,
that no attempt has been made to remove
the difliculties in the Town Council Ovdi-
nance, Chapter 86, and I have had the
occasion to meet a Committee of mewmbers
of the Georgetown Town Council and also
their Legal Adviser. It was apparent that
there were difficulties in the Ordinance
and in some cases provisions of the Ordi-
nance were completely ignored. 1t can be
easily understood. One can only expect
that mistakes will be made resulting in
cost to the taxpayers of the City, but no
attempt is made in this Bill to remove
any of the ditliculties existing now or even
those which may arise after the passing of
this Bill. It is intended as an urgent
measure to imect a situation which has
arisen, aud its whole object is that the
Town Council should be given authority
to collect on a specific basis whatever
rates and taxes they are attempting to
collect.

Clause 3 of she Bill provides for that
basis. It provides that the Town Council
shall compute the town taxes and rates to
be levied in respect of the years 1939 and
1940 on the same basis of the appraise-
ments which existed in 1937 and 1938. It
is necessary that there should be some
limitations to that, and the limitations
considered necessary are contained in the
two provisos to the clause in pavragraphs
(@) and (b). Tf a taxpayer wishes to appeal
against the assesswent or valuation of his
property on the ground that his property has
deteriorated since the 31st December, 1937,
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then he niay do so within the provisions of
the Ordinance. Should during the course
of this vear a building be rvemoved from
a property the taxpayer would be entitled
to appeal or aslk for re-appraisement of
his property on the ground of deterio-
ration by reason of the fact of the removal
of the building. But I may point out
these two provisions, which will become
operative immediately, will not have effect
during 1939, Thatis to say, any appraise-
ment made this year is unot taken into
consideration in fixing the taxes for this

year, but will be in respeet of that
for next year. Ay regards proviso

(6) if the Town Council consider that
a property has become considerably en-
hanced iu value by reason of the fact of
hiiprovements made or the erection of
some buildings on the land, then the Town
Jouncil in their turn will Lbe enabled 1o
order a re-appraisement. That new valua-
tion will become operative in the year
1940. We are more than halfway through
the year, and it is therefore necessary to
put specific dates in that proviso, so that
everyone concerned will become acquainted
with the dates under the provisions of this
Bill. There is therefore in paragraph (a)
another proviso that each person asking
for re-appraisement on the ground of
deterioration must do so before the lst
September, 1939. The object is to give
the Town Council some idea as to the
reason urged on the ground of deteriora-
tion, and also to give the appraisers some
idea with respect to the number of re-
appraisements on account of improvement.
The date fixed by which time the Town
Council must make their ovder for re-
appraisement is the 1st December, 1939.
That is to say, the Town Council have no
later date.

Hon. members may think that the date
should be the same as the one for
re-appraisement through deterioration,
but the reason for fixing as late a date as
possible is because persons making im-
provements or about to do so may delay
until after the 1st September, 1939. Any
improvement made after the 1st December,
1939, is subjected to re-appraisement for
rates during 1940. T do not know whether
it is necessary to give a practical example,
but if hon. members have any diticulty in
following the provisos to the clause or
understanding wy effort in explaining
these provisos, I may state that it also
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became necessary to fix a specific date as
from when re-appraisements ordered by
the Town Council may apply, and that is
the 31st December, 1937, because fol-
lowing upon the decision of the Supreme
Court that all the appraisements are in-
valid any re-appraisement since that date
mwust also be invalid if only on account of
the, fact that the appraisers failed to take
the oath. 1t is for that reasen the 3lst
December, 1037, is chosen.

There is a fourth proviso to the clause.
I do not think hon. members are mwuch
concerned about that. 'The whole ohject
of it is to give opportunity during this
vear to the Town Council to transmit to
the Governor in Council their estimate of
the tax (calculated upon the appraised
value of the properties within the City)
intended to be levied. At the present
moment, without this amendment the
Town Council will have to submit it by
the 13th November, 1939, and
proviso extends the time to the 135th
December, 1939.  The Town Council are
thus given an extra month within which
to submit their estimate purely in respect
of this year. Also in order to save time,
if any person desives to appeal against any
re-appraisement instead of giving one
wonth's notice under the old Ovdinance he
will give ten days according to the altera-
tion by the proviso. The whole object is
to save time.

Clause 3 of the Bill provides for a
decluration of invalidiby of appraisements.
Tt is considered wise to have such a provi-
sion in the Bill, thereby putting an end to
any existing claims that may affect the
appraisements. It must be remembered
that it is only on certain grounds that the
appraisements were deemed invalid by the
Court, but there are several others.

Clause 4 gives vretrospective opera-
tion to the Bill. That is necessary to
cover collections that have been made and
the receipt of money hy the Town Council.
In making the DBill retrospective it he-
came necessary to provide two saving
clauses,—first, that no interest shall he
charged by the Town. Council in respect
of any unpuid tax or rate for any period
prior to the lst of September, 1939, Hon.
members  will agree that after the Court
hes pronounced on the invalidity of the
appraisements it would he inequitable with
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the retrospective operation of the Bill to
leave it open to the Town Council to
charge interest in respect of unpaid rates
and taxes.  Secondly, under the Principal
Ordinance those who had failed to pay
their taxes and rates on the dates on
which they came into force might be sub-
jected to proceedings by the Town Clerk.
It is considered that some notice should
be given to those persons who have not
paid, and some time be allowed them to
make payment of their rates and taxes,
The first of September is the date fixed.
T may mention that if the Bill is not taken
through all its stages to-day, the dates
mentioned in the Bill may be subjected to
revision.

There is also a very necessary clause
inserted for the refund of taxes or rates.
1t may happen that in reverting to the
1937 Dbasis of computation of appraise-
ments those who have paid taxes for this
year on the general appraisements may
have paid more than is called for by this
Bill. In lieu of making a refund the
clause provides for an adjustment ; that is
to say, the Town Council will only he
open to refund such portion of the amount
in excess of the rates or taxes properly
charged under the Bill. T may en pussant
refer to the wording of the clause.  If any
ratepayer comes forward with any good
reason why he should be relieved of his
taxes and vates altogether, that is a matter
between him and the Town Council.  This
clause only safeguards the question  of
refund in so far as persons claiming that
they have been taxed on the wrong basis.

One last observation 1 would like to
make. I would like to inform hon. mem-
bers that it would he a simple matter to
malke certain criticisms of no particular
clause but in gencral.  The criticism  may
he made that if you reverted back to the old
assessiment a hardship would be created in
vespeet of the man whose property was
valued now much less than in 1937, but
that will be applicable to whatever legisla-
tion iy hrought in—if the basis of com-
putation for 1937 and 1938 is the same ov
if there is no question of invalidity in
respect of that for 1030, Certain hard-
ships must be created, T veatuwe o <z
in all circuinstances.  This was
carefully considercid and the conclusion
was arrived at that whatever hardships
may be created, it is impossible to deter-

SN
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hasis created the
hardship. There has been some ques-
tion at some time as to whether the
Legislature should not decree to be invalid
what has been deemed by the Court to be
invalid. If the provisions of this Bill for
the old basis were accepted there would
still be some argument put forward as to
hardships. In these circumstances it is
impossible to defermine the balance of
hardship. Thus I do say that assuming
that certain inequalities are remedied,
there are still other objections which can
be taken, but they cannot apply to the
basis in force in 1937.

mine which greater

Mr. PERCY C. WIGHT : I desire to
thank Government for so promptly dealing
with this matter, which is of vital import-
ance to the property-owners of this City
especially from'the financial standpoint. The
Town Council’s money is exhausting and we
have no desire to come to Government to
ask for further guarantees relative to the
Bank. T desire to express my personal appre-
ciation of the assistance given by the hon. the
Assistant Attorney-General (Mr. Gomes) to
the members of the Committee appointed by
me as Mayor of the Municipality in getting
out this enabling Bill as quickly as we can.
Associated with him is the hon. Mr. Martin-
Sperry, who as President of the Georgetown
Chamber of Commerce recently joined the
Municipality and added considerably to
the hastening of this Bill which is before
the Council to-day.

I must say that while criticism has been
levelled at the Municipality out of fun at
some times, in this particular case T think
such criticism has been quite deserving.
I am not exonerating myself because I was
not in the Mayoral Chair at the time that
this situation occurred, placing the Munici-
pality in the unfortunate dilemma of hav-
ing to get legislation in order to collect its
rates and taxes.

I have gone through the Bill, and Your
Excellency will be pleased to hear that
acting on the suggestion of the hon.
Colonial Secretary, who thought it was
advisable that the Municipality should
meet and appoint the appraisers first, the
Town Council met thismorning and elected
three appraisers. That eliminates any
dificulty in the matter. I am very pleased
to hear that we are going to get the Bill
passed through all its stages to-day. At
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that meeting of the Town Council it was
suggested that I should put that to you,
but it is not necessary for me to do so as
the hon. and learned Assistant Attorney-
General has hinted that he is moving that
the Bill be passed through all its stages
to-day. DPersonally I feel very grateful
that the Bill has come up, as it relieves
me of a great responsibility. Tt has been
my misfortune to come into this matter
and not have it settled out of Court. We
liave been advised, however, that even the
decision of the Court is not quite in agree-
ment with public opinion. Tor myself
there can be no better decision on the
point, though I have suffered materially by
it.

It has been levelled at me that I was
in favour of the 1938 valuations. That is
not correct. I was in favour of the 1939
valuations, because as a body all the Coun-
cillors decided to approach Your Excel-
lency and ask you to confirm them. The
figuves had shown a considerable increase—
actually 10 per cent. over and above the
former valuations. Though a considerable
number of ratepayers did not think of
appealing, as the hon. Assistant Attorney-
General quite rightly said, there were more
than 300 appeals and of those, I do not
think, more than one half went in on the
basis of the formula adopted by the Magis-
trate which, I understand, was on the
rental value. That is only by the way.

I must say that it has been stated, and I
regret having to remark about it but T will
not have another public opportunity to
refer to it, that Your Excellency’s Govern-
ment has decided to uphold the old valua-
tions. Your Excellency had-accorded the
Town Council the privilege of meeting you
and a few of your Heads of Departments,
and at that meeting it was distinctly stated
by Your Excellency that you had a per-
fectly free and open mind in the matter.
We left with the impression that Your
Excellency was more in favour of assisting
us on the 1939 valuations, and I was cer-
tainly surprised to hear the allegation
made that Government had decided on the
1937 valuations long before that meeting.
I therefore desire to take this opportunity
of refuting that statement, because I know
it is absolutely untrue. I can vouch that
whenever Your Excellency makes a state-
ment it is an honest one which you intend
to carry out to the letter.
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I do not think I can add anything to the
lucid explanation of the Bill by the hon. and
learned Assistant Attorney-General, but T
would like particularly to ask him a question
concerning the vefund of the interest paid
when the Bill goes into the Committee
stage. I know personally of several per-
sons who have had to pay interest and did
so promptly. I observe that in this Bill
no provision is made, except under clause
4, for the refund of interest. I feel that
those persons who have paid interest are
entitled to a refund because those persons
who pay their rates and taxes after this
Bill is passed will not be asked to pay
interest until after a certain date, and that
should be the case also in respect of per-
sons who have paid beforehand. Apart
from that I do not see anything in the Bill
to heckle over at all. The Bill certainly
takes us out of a very serious dilemma, for
which I again thank Your Excellency’s
Government,

Tar PRESIDENT: Before the hon.
member sits down, will he formally second
the motion ?

Mr. PERCY C. WIGIIT: I formally
second the motion, and do so with much
pleasure.

Mr. C. V. WIGHT: Unlike the hon.
member for Georgetown Central (M.
P. C. Wight) who does not exonerate him-
self from the mess in which the Town
Council finds itself, T am in a position to
exonerate mvself. The position is this:
With Your Excellency’s permission I will
read certain extracts from about eight
sheets of paper which I have in front of
me—certified minutes and  extracts  of
speeches which I obtained from the
Georgetown Town Council in connection
with the whole matter of the appraisements.
I do not propose to delay the Council
in any way by reading the whole of those
minutes, but T shall just quote from a few.
I regret as a member of the Georgetown
Town Council that this Bill before this
Council should have Dheen  necessary.
My regret, however, does not go so far as
to say it has occasioned me any surprise,
hecause on the 30th of April in a minute
on the Town Council’s files I wrote as fol-
lows :—

If things go on as they are at present pro-

gressing, we may have to ask Government to
pass another enabling Ordinance.
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That is what we are doing to-day. That
was written before any mention of injunction
was macde or even any threat of injunc-
tion had been made. That is why I say it
has occasioned me no surprise.  One only
had to see what was transpiring to say
what the final outcome of these matters
would have been.  On the 8th of July [
stated openly :—

I hope the Council are satisfied for the sake
of those who pay rates and taxes, but I am
not. It would appear that little respect is
shown the Council.

I have made several statements in regard to
this matter, and according to rumcur which in
this case is not a lying jade this Council will
find itself in difficulties unless strong measures
are adopted.

Those words were written at a time
when one anticipated but did not know as
a certainty that this Council would have
to pass a Bill of the nature as has been
placed before it to-day.

I would, however, like to take this
opportunity of stating that I am opposed,
always opposed, to the system of nomina-
tion on the Town Council of Government
Nominees, but if thie Government so desires
that this nomination system should persist
I would ask Government in the future to
consider, and seriously too, the advisability
of appointing nominated members who are
Government Officers. 1 am not referring
to the hon. Nominated Member on my
right (Mr. Martin-Sperry) who has just
been put on the Town Council, and a few
others who are not at present on the Coun-
cil. I say that because 1 attach a con-
giderable amount of blame to the attitude
of one of the Government Nominated
Members on the Town Council. From
the inception the attitude taken up by that
member cannot be verified or substan-
tiated Dy any logical principle or by

any method other than his own per-
sonal likes and dislikes. Tt is my

opinion that the attitude of this particular
member gave rise to & considerable amount
of tension amxl supported a great deal of
the opposition as the result of which the
Town Council has found itsclf placed in a
wrong position. It was to this that the
injunction was due. I think every hon.
member is fully aware of this unfortunate
situation.

1 congratulate and thank Government
for having acted so expeditiously in the
matter. When the injunction proceedings
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were stavted T again referred to the sugges-
tion that if the Town Council had adopted
a rational?attitude there would have been
no such proceedings and this Bill would
not have been necessary. The Tovn Coun-
cil have decided on a new Ordinance which
they propose to get down to, and it is
suggested in that Ovdinance that a new
basis of appraisement be arrived at. At
a meeting of the Town Council held on the
11th of April T suggested that there was
being bruited about the question of
injunction procecding. A letter was
written to the Town Council, and T sug-
gested that if they got down straightaway
to the new Ordinance and notified the
other side they would probably hear
nothing more about the injunction.

I have risen not like the hon. member
for Georgetown Central who has not cxon-
erated himself; I have risen to exonerate
myself and to thank Government for hav-
ing acted so expeditiously in this matter.

Mr. LEE : T would like to know from
Government or hon. members of this
Council who are members of the George-
town Town Council, what will lLappen to
those appeals in rvespect of appraise-
ments, which have not been heard as vet
by the Magistrate but have been put aside
until the decision of the Supreme Court
has been obtained. That decision has now
been given. In the ordinary course of pro-
cedure in the Magistrates’ Court those ap-
peals will go by the board, but thev carry
with them certain penalties. Costs have to
be awarded in respect of them. Costs have
been awarded on several such appeals, some
to the ratepayers and some to the Town
Council, which shows that some one has been
negligent in the exercise of his duty in the
fulfilment of his obligation to the Corpora-
tion. That person knew fully well that
appraisers are to be sworn, but yet that
was not done. No legal opinion as to
whether the appraisers should he sworn
was sought from the Law Officers, and so
the Corporation has heen mulcted in costs.
Many ratepayers have not appealed against
the appraisements on account of the costs
involved, and if it is found that there was
such negligence the oflicers of the Corpora.
tion responsible should he made to pay the
costs incurred.

said about the
The appraisers have done their

There is this to be
matter.
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duty in appraising the properties of this
City, and they are going to ask for pay-
ment for their work. But the appraisers
themselves knew that they should be sworn
and it was their duty to take the oath.
If those appraisers did not approach the
proper authority to take the oath, I am
asking that a motion be moved in this
Council that they be not paid their money.

There is another matter I would like
to point out to this Council, and I take
this opportunity to do so as the members
of the Town Council are either elected by
the ratepayers or nominated by Govern-
ment. I would like to be informed if there
is a general prineiple by which appraise-
ments of City properties should be made,
if that principle has been approved by
Government, and if it is an equitable prin-
ciple ? I think the members of the Town
Council before causing all this muddle
should have laid down the principle on
which the appraisements should be made.
In that way the appraisers would have
been guided by the principle laid down and
also the Magistrate who exercised the final
judgment in the matter.

There is onc other thing I would like to
draw to the attention of Government, and I
sincerely hope Government will look into
it at an early date. Certain property-
owners of this City on account of the
muddle caused by the Town Council have
increased the rents on their properties.
An increase of one shilling to the poor
workman is as great as an increase of a
sovereign to another man drawing a large
salary. If Government re-introduces the
Rents Restriction Ordinance, if only for a
short period, it will show to the public and
to the property-owners who have increased
their rents Government’s disapproval of
the increases.

Ty PRESIDENT: T have allowed the
hon. member to go off the point to a cer-
tain extent, but I cannot allow him to
speak on Rents Restriction.

Mr. LEE: What T am trying to tell
Government is that it will be in the inter-
est of the people if Government shows its
disapproval of the increasing of rents in
the City. I do so from what the news-
papers have reported and from what T
have heard. There has been some negli-
gence on the part of the Town Council in
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not approaching Government before on
this matter. Now that they have done so,
I am glad because many people will be
saved of paying the increase on their
rents and property-owners prevented from
malking profits.

Mr. PERCY C. WIGHT : To a point of
explanation. I do not think the hon. mem-
ber is ever serious in anything he has to
say. To lay a charge of negligence against
the Town Council is an instance. How
can lie lay a charge of negligence against
the Councillors for not knowing that the
appraisers were not sworn? The law has
laid it down, but as a Councillor T knew
nothing about it. However, I am not going
to try to release myself. I am as responsi-
ble as any other of the twelve men on the
Town Council, but you cannot charge any
individual Councillor with carelessness in
the matter. T may add that we are getting a
method of assessment whereby we will not
need any appraisers at all. The Ordinance
wants throwing into the melting-pot, there
is no doubt about that, but it is not fair to
lay a charge of carelessness against the
Councillors.

Mr. MARTIN-SPERRY : In finding
myself entirely in support of this Bill T
desire to state that I happened to he
appointed a member of the Town Council
and endeavoured to remedy some of the
trouble. During the course of redrafting
of the Bill a great many difficulties cropped
up, and I should like to pay a small tribute
to the hon. Assistant Attorney-General
who, as acting Attorney-Generual, has gone
to great pains along with other members
of the Committee to redraft this Bill so
as to meet possible difficulties that may
arise. I was not concerned with the pre-
vious Town Council, and the fact that I
was associated with the injunction pro-
ceedings against the Town Council T do
not propose to touch upon that at all. T
merely desire to state that all the diflicul-
ties have been very carefully considered hy
the Committee which consisted entirely of
lawyers and myself. I would like to voice
my support of this Bill and also to pay
a small tribute to the hon. Assistant
Attorney-General. T trust that it will be
passed without further talk.

Mr. HUMPHRYS : Like the hon. mem
ber, who has just taken his seat, I would
like to see this Bill passed without very
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much talk, but there is one matter which
worries me considerably. I do not quite
sce how Government can deal with it in
this Bill, but it is going to arise very
shortly and if anything can be done to
elucidate it at this stage I would be very

glad. T refer to the costs of the appeals.
That is really a difficult matter, as a
considerable number of the 300 odd
appeals ave still pending.  Some appeals
have bheen  dismissed  with  costs  and
some allowed with costs. I do not know

what the position is going to be if it comes
to a question of law. There can be no
doubt about it, that those whose appeals
have been dismissed will not be strictly
entitled to have the money returned to
them hecause they had appealed against
something which should never have been
done; it was a mistake of law on their part
and the appeals having been dismissed that
money  cannot  be recovered.  That s
the legal aspect. T do not think the Town
Council can adopt in this matter a strict
legal aspect. They have got to view this
matter from  the standpoint of morality.
Due to the Town Council’s negligence
there was an illegal general appraisement
as the result of which many poor people
were  compelled  to  appeal  from  the
taxes levied on that appraisement. Tt was
not until some thne after the appeals were
filed that litigation to set aside the appraise-
menb was started in the Supreme Court.
Tt does seem essential, if the Town Council
are not going to take a moral view of the
matter, that a lead should be given them
by this Council. It is very hard on the
ratepayers to he put to the trouble of
appealing and incurring costs whether the
appeal is successtul or not and then to lose
those costs.  That is the position in which
the matter stands,

What is the position in respect of those
appeals to be heard 2 Are they going to be
allowed with costs 2 Are they to be pigeon-
holed? I respectfully submit that a state-
ment at this stage should be made by the
Mayor of Georgetown as to what the Town
Council propose to do about the matter. I
press it with every sincerity. I consider that
the Town Council should retund the costs to
every appellant who has paid as the result
of his appeal not being successful. It was
not because the appraisement was legal but
hecause the appraisement was illegal.  He
should never have been put in that posi-
tion. ILvery appellant who has paid
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costs should have them refunded, and
the Town Council, I know, will not he
able to recover the costs of those appeals
whicli were successful but cost not paid.
Any costs they had to pay as the result of
the muddle they got into was the fault of
the Town Council. T do not want to stress
the position, as it would he reopening old
wounds, but the Town Council and the
hon. member for Georgetown Central (M.
Percy C. Wight) must agree with me that
a great deal of costs could have been saved
the ratepayvers if the Town Council had not
acted rashly and approved the proceedings
which had been taken. One Town Council-
lor openly said that it was a hluff and no
proceedings would he brought. Ratepayers
have lost nearly $2,000 roughly as the
result of that.

I do submit that the question of the
costs of the appeals is one which should be
discussed at this Council meeting and
something decided about it. It seems to
me that if in these appeals, whether suc-
cessful or not, the appellants are to lose their
costs however small—I think it is $12—
it would be a matter of great hardship.
It was no fault of theirs; the fault only
lies with the Town Council, as they ought
t0 have kept within the four walls of their
Ordinance. They failed to do that.  Wlen
shown that they were wrong, at that stage
they should have stopped and tried to put
themselves in order, but they have waited
until they have been driven against the
wall to now ask for peace. I put forward
the suggestion as an amendment may be
made now to deal with the question of the
costs of appeal. I congratulate very sin-
cerely the hon. Mr. Gomes on the trouble
and interest he has taken in this matter
and the specdy way in which the Bill has
been placed before this Council. I think
the Town Council has found & true friend
in him as acting Attorney-General in his
helping them as he did.

Mr. ELEAZATR : I do not like to med
dle in other people’s matters. I am truly
delighted by the speeches of the hon.
members for Hastern Demerara  (Mr.
Humphrys) and for Western Essequebo
(Mr. C. V. Wight). These two gentlemen,
when the New Amsterdam Town Council
got into ordinary dilliculty and when the
individual  who occupied the Mayoral
Chair was mainly the individual to come
to Govermment in the first instance for a
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Bill to help the situation, got up here and
said that the New Amsterdam Town Coun-
c¢il should be treated as recalcitrant school-
hoys. The Georgetown Town Council
wants taking over by Government but for
the fact that the hon. member for George-
town Central (Mr. Percy C. Wight) is in
the Mayoral Chair. We have to thanlk
the hon. Assistant Attorney-General for
having come to the rescuc of Georgetown
in the same way that he has come to the
rescue of New Amsterdam in order to
avoid an unpleasant situation. I think,
however, that after this, lhon. members
should be very careful how they wag their
tongues upon other people when they see
them in  dificulty. I had issued an
unsolicited warning to that Council that
they were running up against difliculties,
but they would not heed me because they
could not see where the difliculty was com-
ing from. It is not like New Amsterdam
wheve we are most likely to see the trouble,
and do not come here and pray and tell
the world. We do not say that the Bill
should go through without any talk, that
certain members should be exonerated, and
that some member is giving trouble.

I have only got up to say that I endorse
all that has been said of the hon. member
on my vright (Mr. Gomes). All thanks
must be given to Government for coming
in and helping us when we are in dificul-
ties, I want to thank the hon. Mayor of
Georgetown (Mr. Percy C. Wight) for
refusing to exonerate himself and for
accepting the full measure of responsibility
with his Council in the matter. That is
what most of us should do. Do not come
here and make ourselves paragons of excel-
lence and seek to put the blame on the
shoulders of others. That is what 1 am
enjoining upon hon. members who talk so
glibly about New Amsterdam. There we
take the blame and do not come and read
extracts to show that we had said so and
so. With these remarks I beg to resume
my seatb.

Mr. SMELLIE : T do not want to delay
the business of the Council, and therefore
my remarks will be very brief. T would
like to endorse every word that the hon.
member  for  Bastern  Demervara  (Mr.
Humphrys) las stated, especially in view
of the harvdship that will be inflicted on
those who have appealed against the 1939
appraisements if no relief is afforded them.
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As I see it, there are three classes who
were affected by the increased appraise-
ment for the year 1939. Those who did
not appeal but have obtained relief by this
measure, those who did appeal but have
obtained no relief at all, and those who
sought other channels for relief and have
had themselves reimbursed. There is,
therefore, but one class without relief, and
for that reason I urge that something
should be done in order to give them relief
in the way of costs.

Mr. WOOLFORD : I rise only to say
that since I have been a member of the
Executive Council no public measure has
received more extended consideration than
this Bill. T can say without violating any
secrets that at least three meetings of the
Executive Council were held before any
decision was arrived at. It is unfair to
Government and to that Council for anyone
to suggest that there was any preconceived
decision before the Bill was given considera-
tion. T have very great pleasurein saying that
the acting Attorney-General was placed in
a very difficult position when dealing with
this draft Bill. It was really only put into
proper form within a short time of its
publication.

Tee COLONIAT, SECRETARY : I rise
only to say that Government hopes the
members of the Town Council will now
consider seriously the advisability of try-
ing to obtain the services of someone in
the United Kingdom well versed in the
method of appraising properties. Govern-
ment feels it would give greater satisfaction
to ratepayers and all concerned if such
action can be taken by the T'own Council. T
do not wish to cast any veflection on the
manner in which the appraisers have per-
formed their duties, but it does seem in
view of what has happened, that there is
some reason for feeling that the system of
appraisements may well be very seriously
examined.

Mr. PERCY C. WIGHT : I am placed
in a very difficult position to express an
opinion on behalf of the Municipality of
Georgetown.

Mr. GOMES: One point was made by
the hon. member for Eastern Demerara
(Mr. Humphrys) that clause 5 of the Bill,
which relates to the refund of any rates
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and taxes that have been paid, does not
include any provision for interest. This
is the first occasion, although I have met
the members of the Town Council on two
or three occasions, that interest has been
mentioned. That being so, when the
clause reaches the Committee stage I shall
move a small amendment so as to make it
abundantly clear that interest will form
part of any amount that is to be repaid.
It is merely a matter of readjustment. If
the taxes or rates due amount to $20 under
the provisions of the Bill and $50 had
been paid plus $6 interest, then the amount
to be refunded would be $36.

With respect to the question of costs, I
may mention that a Committee of the Town
Council, the legal adviser to the Town
Council, and myself gave it careful con-
sideration, and after a long consideration
it was decided that no attempt should. be
made to make any provision for that in
the Bill, as it is mevrely a matter between
the Town Council and individual rate-
payers. I am inclined to agree with the
observation made by the hon. member for
Eastern Demerara, that the Town Council
should consider as to what should be done
in the case of those appellants who have
suffered.

Question put, and agreed to.
Bill read the second time.

The Council resolved itself into Com-
mittee and proceeded to consider the Bill
clause by clause.

Clause 5—Refund of taxes or rates.

Mr. GOMES: Following upon the
remarks made by the hon. member for
Georgetown Central, I move that the words
“including any interest that may have
been paid’” be inserted in brackets after
the word “amount” in the seventh line of
the clause.

Mr. PERCY C. WIGHT: The hon.
member for Eastern Demerara must recog-
nize that the Town Council have a ILegal
Adviser. He advised us that we were in
perfect order and that an injunction could
not be obtained against the Municipality.
I think the hon. member would admit that
he knew that. The lawyers are the only
persons who have benefited by it. I have
lost considerably by it. Although a redug-
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tion was made on the appraisement of my
property, I still had to pay the lawyers for
appearance. You do not get the costs.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: In reply to the hon.
member, I deny that I knew anything
about advice having heen given to the
Town Council by their counsel. I am not
interested in what advice the Town Coun-
cil received. What I am interested in, is
to hear whether the hon. member for
Georgetown Central will recommend to his
fellow Town Councillors the consideration
of this question of the costs of the appeals,
because I feel it is a moral claim. T do not
want to embarrass the Town Council by
moving an amendment to this Bill, but I
hope the hon. member will do his best to
infuse in his fellow Town Councillors some
feeling of morality in this matter.

Mr. C. V. WIGHT: In regard to the
remarks of the hon. member for Hastern

Demerara, while the Town Council is
under no legal obligation to repay any
money I thoroughly agree with bim in
connection with the costs of the appeals.
Speaking as an individual Town Councillor,
I will heartily suppovt the veturn to any
person, who has suffered hy the action of
the Town Council, the expenditure he
incurred. There must be several persons
who have suffered by the action which the
Town Council forced upon them. The
hon. member referred to the point of the
fees paid by cevtain taxpayers, some of
whom hardly arc in a position to spend
the sum of $12 necessary or requisite to
protect their interests in the matter, and
as an individual Town Councillor I heartily
support the return of any such expenditure
on their behalf.

The hon. member for Berbice River
(Mr. Eleazar) referred to me as his youth-
ful colleague. He knows that youth al-
ways bow to the wisdom of their elders
only in cases where thosc clders set a good
example. T do not think they have done
so in this case.

Mr. ELEAZAR: I regret I have to
again remind the members of the George-
town Town Council that the words of the
Mayor ov of the youthful member here
cannot bind the Town Council at all.
Some people have lost by going to appeal
because they were mistaken in their law.
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Mr. PERCY C. WIGHT : I make no
rash promise, but will convey to the Town
Council what the hon. member for Eastern
Demerara has said and what the hon.
Colonial Secretary has made public this
afternoon.

Amendment put, and agreed to.

The Council resumed.

Mr. GOMES: I move that «A Bil
intituled an Ordinance to prescribe the
method to be adopted in computing the
taxes and rates to be levied by the Mayor
and  Town Council of Georgetown in
respect of the years nineteen hundred and
thirty-nine and nineteen hundred and
forty ” be read a third time and passed.

Mr. WOOD seconded.

Question ¢ That this Bill be now read a
third time and passed ”’ put, and agreed to.

Bill read the thivd time.

Diocese or Guiana (AMENDMENT)
BirL.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I move that “ A
Bill intituled An Ordinance to amend the
Diocese of Guiana Ordinance, Chapter 229,
to male provision for increasing the num-
ber of the Trustees and for the exercise
of the powers of the Trustees by three or
more surviving or remaining Trustees’
be now read a second time. I may say
that the object of this Bill is simply to
enable the Diocesan Synod to appoint
another two Trustees, making the total
number “five” instead of ¢ three.” The
reason is that every now and then one or
more of the Trustees leave the Colony on
vacation, and it is found difficult to carry
on sometimes with only a single Trustee
remaining here. By virtue of increasing
the number there will always be three or
more Trustees in the Colony. The framers
desire that at least three Trustees should
carry on, if possibly one or two of the
Trustees must be out of the Colony. I do
not think I need say further on this Bill,

Mr. AUSTIN seconded.
Question put, and agreed to.

Bill read the second time.
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The Council resolved itself into Com-
mittee and proceeded to consider the Bill
clause by clause.

Clause 2—Amendment of section 5 of
the Principal Ordinance.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I have Dbeen
requested by the framers to ask this Coun-
eil to agree to an amendment in the fourth
line of subclause 2 by substituting the word
“three ” for the word ¢ two.”

Amendment put, and agreed to.

The Council resumed.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I give notice that
at the next or a subsequent meeting of the
Council I will move that the Bill be read
a third time and passed.

Tag PRESIDENT : I think it would
probably be for the convenience of hon.
members if the third reading of the two
Bills taken in the Committee stage to-day
be taken now. It is improbable that there
will be any business before the Council for
about three weeks, and perhaps we might
suspend the Standing Rules and Orders in
order to take the third reading of these
two Bills.

New Ansterpam Tows Councin (MAYORAL
Errorion) Binr.

My. GOMES: I move that the Stand-
ing Rules and Orders be suspended to
enable the New Amsterdam Town Council
(Mayoral Election) Bill to be read a third
time without due notice.

Mr. WOOD seconded.
Motion put, and agreed to.

Mr. GOMES: I move that “A Bill
intituled An Ordinance to make provision
for the election of a Mayor of New
Amsterdam for the remainder of the cur-
rent year and for matters in connection
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therewith 7 be read a third time and
passed.

Mr. WOOD seconded.

Question ¢ That this Bill be read a third
time and passed” put, and agreed to.

Bill read the third time.

Diocese or GuiaNa (AMENDMENT) BILL.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I move that the
Standing Rules and Orders be suspended
in order to enable the Diocese of Guiana
(Amendment) Bill to be read a third time
and passed without due notice.

Mr. SMELLIE seconded.
Motion put, and agreed to.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: I move that “A
Bill intituled An Ordinance to amend the
Diocese of Guiana Ordinance, Chapter
229, to make provision for increasing the
number of the Trustees and for the exer-
cise of the powers of the Trustees by three
or more of the surviving or remaining
Trustees ”’ be read a third time and passed.

Mr. SMELILIE seconded.

Question ¢ That this Bill be read a third
time and passed "’ put, and agreed to.

Bill read the third time.
Taeg PRESIDENT : I would like to in-

form hon. members that there is no further
business before the Council. At the
present time there are two or three Bills
which Government proposes to bring for-
ward, and notice has been given on the
Order Paper of several motions. I think
it is probable that it will be necessary to
have a meeting of the Council in about
three weeks time, but I cannot fix a specified
date to-day. The Council will therefore
adjourn sine die.

The Council adjourned accordingly.





